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Physical Description of Site:

The south elevation has a small twin light

Drysdale State School No.1645 was designed by Education Department architect Henry
Robert Bastow; with a similar plan to the Helen St State School, Northcote ¢.1874. It was
designed as a three room schoolhouse defined by three intersecting roof gables.

The original school building was a monotone brown brick, with a large steep pitch gabled
roof clad in slate, and two tall brick chimneys located in the roof valley, on the east
elevation. The gable ends have simple bargeboards and circular louvered vents, above a
set of four timber framed, double-hung multi-pane windows with top lights.

window with toplights and two timber doors.

The building is relatively unaltered - the roof has been re-clad and a verandah has been
added to the north projecting gable, connecting with other school buildings on the site.
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History of Site/Object/Place:

Early education in Victoria was undertaken primarily by churches and private individuals until the Education
Act of 1872 was brought in making the State responsible for the compulsory education of all children.(1)

Tenders were called in October 1874 for the erection of a brick state school at Drysdale. William Swanson
of Melbourne was the successful tenderer and the building was completed by July 1875.(2) There was a
large official opening ceremony with 400 children present plus parents and other community members.(3)

The building consisting of one large room, a smaller room and a gallery was remodelled in 1914. Further
additions have been undertaken in the 1970s.(4)

The building is discussed briefly in Burchill and a floor plan of the original design is reproduced. (See
additional information.) Drysdale Primary School is a representative example of small rural schools built
under the leadership of Mr. Bastow the architect for the Victorian Education Department from the late
nineteenth century to the early twentieth century.(5)

References:

Blake, L.(1973) Vision and Realisation p.996
Geelong Advertiser19.10.1874, 9.7.1875
Drysdale Primary School 1875-1975 p.11
Blake L.,op.cit., p.1038

Burchell L, (1980) Victorian Schools A Study in Colonial Government Architecture 1837-1900

aprwO =

Lorraine Huddle Renate Howe  Ros Lewis  Karyn Francis
CENTRE FOR AUSTRALIAN STUDIES DEAKIN UNIVERSITY 1996



TR fw;r’s

BELLARINE HERITAGE STUDY RECORD SHEET

Site
Address

No. Street/Site name Town / Suburb

52 Clifton Springs Rd

Drysdale 3222

Record No.

Page No.

4 of 4

Statement of Cultural Significance:

The Drysdale Primary School No.1645 designed by Education Department architect Henry Robert Bastow and built by
William Swanson of Melbourne in 1875, is a relatively unaltered brown brick three room building with three steeply pitched
intersecting roof gables, two tall chimneys, circular louvre vents and timber framed double hung multi-pane windows with

top lights. Some minor changes took place in 1914 and in the 1970s.

The Drysdale Primary School has historic and social value to the Drysdale community.

The Drysdale Primary School is an example of a purpose built small rural school constructed soon after the Education Act
of 1872 made the State responsible for compulsory education of all children. It is an example of the designs of Henry
Bastow, Victorian Education Departmént architect and it has been in continuous use as a school since it was built.

Itis of LOCAL cultural significance.

Additional Information
Floor plan of original design
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VICTORIAN SCHOOLS

A Study in Colonial Government. Architecture
1837-1900
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